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Response to Bidder Questions and Amendment 1 to Request for Proposal 10-34

High Speed Single Pass Document and Remittance Scanner Solution

March 22, 2011

To All Potential Bidders:

Attached is the Departments response to bidder questions.  In addition, attached to this document is Amended pages of RFP 10-34, High Speed Single Pass Document and Remittance Scanner Solution for the following:

· Preface 

· Attachment I

All other requirements and conditions remain as indicated in the RFP. 
	#
	RFP Section
	RFP Page #
	Question
	Answer

	1
	Section II: Functional Requirements, subset A
	Page 22
	The RFP states: “Scanner solution must include a minimum of six (6) sort trays-.  stackers per unit and six (6) pockets to segregate scanned documents.” 

Please be more specific as to the differentiation between the pockets and the sort trays-stackers. Are the sort tray-stackers there to empty the contents of the pockets when they get full?

 If I offer a double-load pocket, can I eliminate the sort trays altogether? Please advise. Thank you.
	Six Sort tray stackers are organizational bins for pre-process work and supplies.  The six pockets to segregate scanned documents refers to programmable output sort bins for work that has been processed through the scanner.  

No.



	2
	
	22
	  On page 22, it reads “Scanner Solution must include a minimum of six (6) sort trays-stackers per unit and six (6) pockets to segregate scanned documents.”

What is the difference between a sort trays-stacker and a pocket?  Please provide a definition of both “Sort trays-stacker” and “Pocket”.  
	Please see response to question 1.

	3
	
	23
	On Page 23, the term “Project Warranty Period” is used .  It appears that any component failure, or problem, during the "Project Warranty Period" will extend the warranty period. Potentially a very routine problem such as a simple belt failure could occur during the “Project Warranty Period” and this would extend the warranty period.  To clarify this topic, please address an example -- if belt failures and other issues cause collective downtime of 16 hours during the “Project Warranty Period” then the warranty is to be extended by two days?  Even if the issues occurred over several days -- for example, during the Project Warranty Period there were 8 issues, each causing two hours of downtime, for a total of 16 hours of downtime -- then the warranty is extended for two days.  Is that correct?  
	Normal wear items do not extend the warranty.

	4
	
	
	  Is it acceptable for a vendor to submit two separate bids -- one with scanners from “Company A”, and another bid with scanners from “Company B”?  Or is New York State looking for a vendor to make a recommendation on a specific scanner?  
	Yes, the Vendor can submit two separate proposals offering different solutions.

	5
	Section III
	page 22
	Scanner Solution must include a minimum of six (6) sort trays-stacker per unit and six pockets to segregate scanned documents 

Question: Please separately describe: 

a) how the six sort trays and six pockets will be used 

b) for what types of documents;   and 

c) the specific criteria and/or decision rules used to determine how sorts will be performed?
	a) See response to question 1.

b) Returns, regular checks, foreign checks, transaction separators, rejects

c) The criteria will be based on the attributes of the document such as:

· form id

· bar code

· micr line

specifics will be determined during implementation.

	6
	Section III
	page 22
	The ability for auto-rotation of documents.

Question: Is this auto-rotation to be based on document content?
	Yes.

	7
	Section III
	page 22
	The ability to put the pages of each transaction in sequential page order regardless of the order scanned

Question: Do the order of the pages need to be determined at scan time, or can this be performed as a post-scan process. Please explain how the specific order will be determined and will each document be an unique type, or will this vary?


	The order of the pages can be performed either at scan time or post-scan.  The specific order will be determined by a page number in the form id and/or barcode.

	8
	Schedule of Events
	5
	If New York State Tax is unable to release the responses to bidders’ questions by March 22, 2011, will New York State Tax consider a postponement of the response due date for a period of one week?
	It is department procedure to extend the response due date if the response to questions is delayed.

	9
	Preface – A.  Proposal Questions/Inquiries
	6
	Under the Preface, Section A on page 6 of the RFP states the following:  “Prospective bidders should note that all clarifications and exceptions, including those relating the term terms and conditions of the RFP, are to be resolved prior to the submission of a bid.  Bidders entering into a bid with the State are expected to comply with all the terms and conditions contained herein.”

However, Section V, Administrative Requirements, Sub-Section B, Administrative Contract Conditions, under paragraph 19, Proposed Extraneous Terms, on page 44 of the RFP, allows bidders to provide any objections to the terms and conditions outlined in Section V.B. or the Preliminary Contract, Exhibit B, as part of the bidder’s response.  

Since the Preface (pg. 6) and Section V (pg. 44) of the RFP contains different procedures and timing for submission of exceptions and/or objections, can you please advise if a bidder is permitted to provide extraneous terms in its response to the RFP?
	Please see Amendment to Preface.  The Bidder is permitted to propose extraneous terms with the response to the RFP.

	10
	I. Introduction:  A. Purpose
	13
	(A) Can you please clarify the meaning of the term “integration” as used in this provision?  

(B) Does integration mean that the successful bidder must connect the bidder’s remittance scanning solution to J&B’s remittance processing software?  Please take note that if J&B needs any additional software and/or hardware component to connect their remittance processing software system to the bidder’s remittance scanning solution, then New York State Tax will need to purchase such additional software and/or hardware components directly from J&B, at New York State Tax’s sole cost.
	Your interpretation of integration is correct.  We are aware that New York State will work directly with J & B to obtain whatever components are necessary.

	11
	I. Introduction; B. Program Overview
	13
	Is it the intent of New York State Tax to continue using its current OPEX 3690t scanners?  
	New York State Tax will continue to utilize the 3690t for the current tax applications that we are processing now.

	12
	I.  Introduction; C. Implementation
	15
	i. With respect to the request for the initial purchase of a minimum of 2 scanners, the purchase of additional remittance scanners and the potential of purchasing additional remittance scanners in order to process up to an additional 30% capacity, please take note that the bidder has a 90 – 120 calendar delivery period, from the date the successful bidder receives a firm purchase order from New York State Tax.  Will this delivery timeframe be acceptable to New York State Tax?

ii. Would New York State Tax consider issuing one purchase order for all the scanners that will be needed in order for New York State Tax to process its corporate tax documents beginning in January 2, 2013?  The reason is because it will reduce the scanner purchase price, per unit and the bidder will not invoice New York State Tax until delivery of the scanner?


	Yes

For this procurement, the Department will not be issuing a Purchase Order.  The Contract will specify the total number of scanners required and they will be delivered over an agreed upon period of time.

	13
	II. Qualifying Requirements; B. High Speed Single Pass Document and Remittance Scanning Implementation Experience
	16
	Please kindly refer to bidder’s question regarding the term “integration” as set forth under Question 3 (now 10) above.


	Please see response to 10.

	14
	II. Qualifying Requirements; C. Financial Stability b(ii)
	17
	Bidder is a privately held business and as such, considers its financial information to be extremely confidential and proprietary.  Additionally, as a course of conducting business with our customers, we normally release financial information to our customers and only upon written request, and pursuant to a written confidentiality and nondisclosure agreement.  

Due to the highly confidential nature of this information, can you please advise if we can submit the financial information in a separated sealed envelope and assured by New York State Tax that such financial information will not be included as part of the public records but instead shall be kept confidential?

What are the procedures for maintaining the financial documentations confidential?  Who will have access to these financial documents?  Will New York State Tax destroy the financial statements once the RFP evaluation is completed?  Or will New York State Tax return the financial statements to the bidder?
	The Freedom of Information Law exempts from mandated disclosure records which “are trade secrets or are submitted to an agency by a commercial enterprise or derived from information obtained from a commercial enterprise and which if disclosed would cause substantial injury to the competitive position of the subject enterprise”. Public Officers Law §87(2)(d). The Department’s regulations contain procedures the commercial enterprise must follow to claim this exemption. Those procedures require the enterprise to claim the exemption at the time the records are submitted and explain the reasons why the information should be excepted from disclosure. If a request for the records is made, the Department will notify the enterprise of the request and permit them to submit a written statement regarding the necessity for granting or continuing the exception from disclosure. The Records Access Officer of the Department will review the statement of the enterprise and make a decision to release or withhold the records. The enterprise is notified of the Records Access Officer's decision. If the Records Access Officer decides to release the records, the enterprise may appeal that decision to the Department's Records Appeals Officer. The decision of the Records Appeals Officer to release or withhold the records is subject to court review. See Department Regulation 20 NYCRR §2370.7.  The Department would not release any records submitted in relation to a bid until after the contract is awarded. NY’s Freedom of Information Law contains an exception from disclosure for records that if disclosed would impair present or imminent contract awards. See Public Information Law §87(2)(c).  The Department retains bid proposals as part of the procurement record, required by State Finance Law Section 163.9(g).  Bid Proposals are retained in accordance with a record retention schedule set by the State Archives and Records Administration.

	15
	III. Functional Requirements; A. High Speed Single Pass Document and Remittance Scanner Solution
	21
	Can New York State Tax clarify the second bullet point on page 21 regarding the following requirement:  scanner solution must have the ability to provide a separate test environment


	The scanner must be able to store images and data to test and production in separate locations.

	16
	III. Functional Requirements; A. High Speed Single Pass Document and Remittance Scanner Solution
	22
	Can New York State Tax clarify the fifth bullet point on page 22 regarding the following requirement:  the ability to compile all statistical information from a various number of scanners into one summary report?

· Does New York State want to add this capability for its current 3690t scanners?

· Does New York State want this capability for both the primary site and the disaster recover site?


	Not applicable to this RFP.

The primary site only.

	17
	III. Functional Requirements; A. High Speed Single Pass Document and Remittance Scanner Solution
	23
	Under the last bullet point for III.A., it states that the software licenses are perpetual and software license agreements are negotiable to meet the terms and conditions of this RFP

(A)  Can a bidder include a copy of its software license agreement even if it may obtain terms and conditions that are contradictory to the terms and conditions set forth under the Preliminary Contract, Exhibit B?

(B)  Can New York State Tax clarify the term “perpetual?”  

Does New York State Tax agree that the issuance of a perpetual license is conditioned on the payment by New York State Tax of bidder’s annual license fees?
	A.  Yes, but the Bidder must agree to negotiate terms as necessary.

B. A "perpetual license" gives the Department the right to use, copy, display and internally distribute the Licensed Software for an infinite term, which does not expire.  A perpetual license is paid for once and does not need to be renewed.  Therefore, the Department would not pay annual license fees.  The Department would pay maintenance fees, if and when the Department decides to purchase maintenance.
No.

	18
	III. Functional Requirements; B.  Warranty
	23
	With respect to the third paragraph of Section III(B), bidder is respectfully requesting New York State Tax to consider the bidder’s warranty terms as set forth below.  Please take note that bidder is the original equipment manufacturer for the scanning equipment.

“Bidder warrants that it owns the product(s) and that it shall transfer good title to the Product(s) to Purchaser.  Bidder further warrants that it shall repair or replace defective parts, including labor, and shall perform preventive maintenance at no cost to Purchaser for the following periods of time, all commencing from the date of delivery:  For the scanning equipment, one (1) year. Labor during the warranty period is limited to bidder’s standard maintenance hours, 7:00 AM to 3:00PM, Monday through Friday, excluding bidder holidays.

THE FOREGOING EXPRESS WARRANTIES ARE EXCLUSIVE AND MADE IN LIEU OF ANY AND ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING THOSE OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. BIDDER SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH ITS PERFORMANCE PURSUANT TO THIS PROPOSAL, THE PRODUCTS OR SERVICES SOLD HEREUNDER, OR THEIR USE BY PURCHASER, AND SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES TO PROPERTY, PERSONS OR OTHERWISE, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS PROPOSAL, THE PRODUCTS AND SERVICES SOLD HEREUNDER, OR THE OPERATION OF THE PRODUCTS, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER OR NOT BIDDER HAS ACTUAL KNOWLEDGE OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSS OR DAMAGE. PURCHASER AND BIDDER AGREE THAT PURCHASER'S SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY SHALL BE LIMITED TO DAMAGES IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF THE PURCHASE PRICE OF A PARTICULAR PRODUCT OR THE COST OF A SERVICE HEREUNDER, WHICHEVER IS LESS. ALL ACTIONS ON THE WARRANTIES HEREUNDER MUST BE COMMENCED WITHIN SIX (6) MONTHS OF THE DATE OF DELIVERY OR BE OTHERWISE LOST. THIS LIMITED WARRANTY AND THE LIMITATION ON REMEDIES CONTAINED HEREIN ARE REFLECTED IN THE PURCHASE PRICE OF THE PRODUCTS.”
	No.  The warranty terms identified conflict with the Mandatory requirement.  Any bidder that does not meet the mandatory requirements will be deemed non-responsive and removed from further consideration.

	19
	III. Functional Requirements; C. Acceptance
	24
	A. With respect to the second paragraph to Section III (C), Acceptance, can you please clarify the term “tests and data sets to be specified by the Department”?  

B. Can you please clarify if the term “day” is defined as calendar day?

Can the bidder provide a copy of its standard acceptance test criteria documentation in its response which will be used to determine whether the scanning equipment is acceptable to New York State Tax during the thirty (30) calendar day period following the completed installation of the equipment?  
Alternatively, if this is not acceptable to New York State Tax, can both parties agree upon a mutually acceptable acceptance test following the award of this RFP?
	The Department reserves the right to run a limited number of forms through each scanner to validate image quality and output. This test will be performed when each shipment of scanners is delivered to DTF.
Yes, Calendar day.

No.  Testing of the scanners for acceptance is the sole responsibility of DTF.  DTF will run its own test deck through the scanners using DTF forms.
No.  Testing of the scanners for acceptance is the sole responsibility of DTF.



	20
	III. Functional Requirements; D. Support and Maintenance
	25
	A. Under the sub-heading titled “General”, and under the first bullet, please confirm if both the disaster recovery site and the production site will need full maintenance service. For reference, bidder does not offer a volume based maintenance contract.

B. Under the sub-heading titled “General”, and under the first bullet, will New York State Tax consider changing the support and maintenance period from 8 AM – 5 PM, Monday through Friday, to 7 AM – 3 PM, Monday through Friday?  Please take note that the 7 AM – 3PM, Monday through Friday, maintenance period will reduce New York State Tax’s annual operation costs.  

For reference, bidder is currently provide on-call maintenance services for New York State Tax’s existing bidder product during the hours of 7 AM – 3 PM, Monday through Friday, excluding bidder holidays.  Additionally, we will exert all reasonable efforts to arrive on-site within four (4) hours from the time we receive New York State Tax’s service call, during the hours of 7 AM – 3PM, Monday through Friday, excluding bidder holidays.

C. With respect to the observance of Federal Banking holidays, as mentioned in the above paragraph, bidder currently provides on-call maintenance services for New York State Tax’s existing scanning product during the hours of 7 AM – 3 PM, Monday through Friday, excluding bidder holidays.  Will New York State Tax agree to change holiday schedule from the Federal Banking holidays to bidder’s holiday schedule as set forth below?

Bidder currently observes the following holidays:  New Year’s Day, President’s Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Thanksgiving Day, Day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Day.

D. Under the sub-heading titled “General”, and under the second bullet (pg. 25), please advise if New York State Tax will consider modifying the peak period from 8 AM to 8 PM, Monday through Saturday, excluding Federal Banking holidays to 7 AM – 7 PM, Monday through Saturday, excluding bidder holidays. Please take note that the 7 AM – 7AM, Monday through Friday, maintenance period will reduce New York State Tax’s annual operation costs.

E. Under the sub-heading titled “General”, and under the second bullet (pg. 25), the following question pertains to the request for a contractor to respond within sixty (60) minutes of the Department’s request for assistance and to provide on-site support within 1 business day of the assistance request.

Bidder’s standard response time is to exert all reasonable efforts to arrive on-site within four (4) hours from the time we receive New York State Tax’s service call, during the hours of 7 AM – 3PM, Monday through Friday, excluding bidder holidays.  Additionally, due to the nature of the products, we do not offer telephone support and as such, we respond to all service calls by dispatching a trained technician to the equipment site to diagnose, and repair the equipment malfunction.

Will the bidder’s above described maintenance response procedure be acceptable to New York State Tax?

F. Under the sub-heading titled “Software”, and under the first bullet (pg. 26), can you please clarify the following terms:  upgrades, updates, and releases to software and technical patches? 

Are upgrades, updates and releases to software and technical patches only applicable if these updates which are provided to bidder’s other similarly situated users also at no cost?  As such, any and all other upgrades, enhancements, or engineering changes which are offered at an additional cost to similarly situated customers shall also be made available to New York State Department of Tax according to bidder’s published rates and terms currently then in effect.

G. Under the sub-heading titled Response Requirement”, (pg. 27), can you please confirm if the bidder can provide its on-call maintenance program information under Attachment G, Support and Maintenance Response Form? 
	The Department requires full maintenance in both the disaster recovery site and production site.  If the Bidder does not offer a volume based contract, this will not preclude them from bidding.

No.

No.

No.

The Department is willing to agree to a twelve hour shift starting no earlier than 7 am and no later than 9 am.  The Department is not willing to exclude Bidder holidays.

The Contractor must respond within 60 minutes of the Department’s request for assistance.  If a critical problem cannot be addressed or resolved via this method, the Contractor will provide on-site software support/technical support assistance within 1 business day of the assistance request.  We require an acknowledgement of the Department’s request within 60 minutes.

Your interpretation of upgrades, updates and releases to the software and technical patches is correct.  This is only applicable id theses are provided to Bidder’s other similarly situated users at no cost.

The Bidder must meet the mandatory requirements of Section III. D. Support and Maintenance.  If the Bidder is offering Support and Maintenance the exceeds these requirements, they may attach the maintenance information to Attachment G.



	21
	III. Functional Requirements; E. Training
	27
	Is New York State interested in sending a manager or an IT individual to bidder’s administrator class at bidder’s facility to learn how to perform job setup on the scanner solution?  There is a fee associated with attending bidder’s administrator class.
	Although the Department may be interested in this type of training in the future, this will be through a separate procurement.  All training information in response to the Technical and Financial requirements of this bid, must be for training held at the Departments Albany site only.

	22
	III. Functional Requirements; E. Relocation of Equipment
	28
	If New York State Tax chooses not to utilize bidder’s services for relocating the scanning solution, then bidder will need to inspect the scanning solution at the new location, at an additional cost.  And the purpose of the inspection is to ensure that the scanning solution is performing in accordance to our published specifications.

Can you please kindly advise if this is acceptable to New York State Tax?


	The Department understands there may be additional costs associated with relocation of the equipment.   Please see Amendment to Attachment I.



	23
	IV.  Financial Requirements, Part 1:  High Speed Single Pass Document and Remittance Scanner Solution
	30
	(A) With respect to the price increase, will New York State Tax permit bidders to propose alternative price cap language?  Will New York State Tax consider a revision to the price cap to the following:  not to exceed five percent (5%) per year, based on the previous year’s maintenance fees, as invoiced by the bidder.  

With respect to the renewal option, will New York State Tax consider the possibility of allowing the successful bidder and New York State Tax to negotiate the price increase and maintenance/license fees for five subsequent annual renewal periods at least 90 days prior to the end of the first five (5) year period?  The reason for this request is due to the unpredictable nature and rise in the cost of raw materials (i.e., metal based components), gasoline, and labor and as such, it is extremely difficult for a bidder to ascertain what the annual cost increase would be for maintenance fees over a ten (10) year period.
	No.

	24
	V.  Administrative Requirements; A. Administrative Proposal Conditions; 5. Proposal Security
	31
	What is the time frame for receiving a firm response for the application?  


	The Department generally does not provide a response to a request to withhold disclosure of documents as trade secrets at the time the documents are initially supplied to the Department and identified as trade secrets. Once a request for disclosure of the records is received, the Department's Records Access Officer will notify the entity that submitted the documents of the request. That entity will have 10 days after receiving that notice to submit a written statement of the necessity for granting or continuing the trade secret exemption. Within 7 days of receipt of the written statement or 7 days after the expiration of the 10 day period for the submission, the records access officer will make a decision on whether or not the trade secret exemption from disclosure applies. If the Records Access Officer denies the exemption, the entity has 7 days to appeal that denial to the Records Appeals Officer. The Records Appeals Officer is required to make a decision on that appeal within 7 days.

	25
	V.  Administrative Requirements; B. Administrative Contract Conditions; 4. Minority and Women-Owned Business Enterprises
	35
	Can you please advise if a bidder can obtain an exemption for this requirement?  The reason is due to the fact that bidder is a sole source manufacturer and service provider for its products.  We manufacture the products in our facilities located in our facility and all aspects of maintenance services are performed directly by bidder’s trained employees.  As such, we do not utilize third parties in the provision of maintenance services for our products.  


	The Department is committed to the goals outlined in Section 313 of Executive Law.  The goal is to utilize certified minority- or women-owned business enterprises (MWBE) in contracts awarded by State agencies as primary contractors as well utilize MWBE's as subcontractors and suppliers.  There is, however, the opportunity to request an exemption.  Any such request must be made in accordance with related Article 15-A regulations.  The following will provide you with a link to regulations.  See sections 142.7 and 142.8 specifically.  http://www.esd.ny.gov/MWBE/Data/122210_MWBE15-ARegs.pdf

The Department hopes that even a sole source vendor would make a good faith effort to utilize certified MWBE firms as subcontractors and/or suppliers.  An example of suppliers would be firms from which you purchase items to manufacture your products, operations support (janitorial, paper purchases, etc.) or building security that can be allocated as support to your contract with the Department.

Information regarding a waiver request can be found at:  http://www.ogs.state.ny.us/purchase/bidcreation.asp

	26
	V.  Administrative Requirements; B. Administrative Contract Conditions; 20. Request for Exemption from Disclosure
	44-45
	Can a bidder’s financial information qualify for exemption from disclosure?  If a bidder’s request for exemption from disclosure is denied, will the information automatically be subject to pubic information as regulated by the Freedom of Information Law?


	The Freedom of Information Law exempts from mandated disclosure records which “are trade secrets or are submitted to an agency by a commercial enterprise or derived from information obtained from a commercial enterprise and which if disclosed would cause substantial injury to the competitive position of the subject enterprise”. Public Officers Law §87(2)(d). The Department’s regulations contain procedures the commercial enterprise must follow to claim this exemption. Those procedures require the enterprise to claim the exemption at the time the records are submitted and explain the reasons why the information should be excepted from disclosure. If a request for the records is made, the Department will notify the enterprise of the request and permit them to submit a written statement regarding the necessity for granting or continuing the exception from disclosure. The Records Access Officer of the Department will review the statement of the enterprise and make a decision to release or withhold the records. The enterprise is notified of the Records Access Officer's decision. If the Records Access Officer decides to release the records, the enterprise may appeal that decision to the Department's Records Appeals Officer. The decision of the Records Appeals Officer to release or withhold the records is subject to court review. See Department Regulation 20 NYCRR §2370.7.  The Department would not release any records submitted in relation to a bid until after the contract is awarded. NY’s Freedom of Information Law contains an exception from disclosure for records that if disclosed would impair present or imminent contract awards. See Public Information Law §87(2)(c).  The Department retains bid proposals as part of the procurement record, required by State Finance Law Section 163.9(g).  Bid Proposals are retained in accordance with a record retention schedule set by the State Archives and Records Administration.

	27
	VI.  Proposal Submission; B.  Submission of Proposals
	46-47
	With respect to the address for deliveries made by FedEx, UPS, etc, can you please advise if a bidder should send the package to the address as listed below:

New York State Department of Taxation and Finance

Attn:  Catherine Golden, Assistant Director

Procurement Services Unit

90 Cohoes Avenue

Green Island, NY 12183


	The label for the Delivery service can be addressed as indicated, however, there should be a label on the package identifying the address as:

New York State Department of Taxation and Finance

Attn:  Catherine Golden, Assistant Director

Procurement Services Unit

W.A. Harriman State Office Building Campus

Albany, NY 12227

	28
	Exhibit B – Preliminary Contract


	
	A. Article III.  Contractor Responsibilities (pg. 61)

A. With respect to the second sentence under Article III, bidder respectfully request New York State Tax to review bidder’s comments under D below of Question 21 (now 28), titled Article VII.  Secrecy Provisions. Article V.  Contract Term (pg. 61-62)

B. Article V.  Contract Term (pg. 61-62)

With respect to the sentence “The contract may be extended for one additional five (5) year term,” bidder respectfully requests New York State Tax to refer to question 16 (now 23) above regarding the price increase during this additional five (5) year term.

C. Article VI.  Fees and Payment (pg. 62)

With respect to Article VI, sub-article (a), will New York State Tax consider the modification of the payment terms from “upon acceptance of the solution, upon receipt of a proper invoice” to “upon installation of the solution, upon receipt of a proper invoice.”

D. Article VII.  Secrecy Provisions

i. B. Federal Secrecy Provisions, Paragraph 4(pg. 63)

Please be advised that bidder is not receiving, sending, storing, transmitting, and/or processing any data for New York State Tax.  The actual work process of scanning New York State Tax’s documentation will be performed by New York State Tax employees and/or its authorized subcontractors at New York State Tax’s facilities and will not be performed by bidder.  Furthermore, bidder cannot remotely access the scanner solution.  Additionally, the scanner solutions will be installed at New York State Tax’s facilities and will be under the exclusive management and control of New York State Tax.

Based on the above, bidder is respectfully requesting the removal of paragraph 4 of sub-Article B, Federal Secrecy Provisions, as set forth below:

“4.  The Contractor certifies that the data processed during the performance of this Agreement will be completely purged from all data storage components of his or her computer facility, and no output will be retained by the Contractor at the time the work is completed.  If immediate purging of all data storage is not possible, the Contractor certifies that any IRS data remaining in any storage component will be safeguarded to prevent unauthorized disclosures.”

ii. B. Federal Secrecy Provisions, Paragraph 6(pg. 64)

Based on bidder’s explanatory comments set forth under Question 21, sub-part D(i) above, bidder is respectfully requesting the removal of paragraph 4 of sub-Article B, Federal Secrecy Provisions, as set forth below:

“6.  all computer systems receiving, processing, storing or transmitting of Federal tax information must meet the requirements defined in IRS Publication 1075.  To meet functional and assurance requirements, the security features of the environment must provide for managerial, operational, and technical controls.  All security features must be available and activated to protect against unauthorized use of and access to Federal tax information.”

iii. B. Federal Secrecy Provisions, Paragraph 9 (pg. 64)

Pursuant to the terms set forth under Article XII. Termination, bidder is respectfully requesting a cure period of at least thirty (30) calendar days from the date bidder receives written notification from New York State Tax regarding bidder’s failure to comply with the safeguards set forth under Article VII, Secrecy Provisions.  If upon termination of the thirty (30) calendar day period and bidder has failed to correct the safeguard deficiency, then New York State Tax shall exercise its right to terminate the Agreement set forth under paragraph 9 of Article VII, sub-article B.

iv. Inspections (pg. 65)

Bidder is respectfully requesting at least thirty (30) calendar days’ advance written notice prior to conducting an inspection at bidder’s facility located in bidder’s facility.

v. Information Security Breach and Notification Act (pg. 66)

Please be advised that bidder is not receiving, sending, storing, transmitting, and/or processing any data for New York State Tax.  The actual work process of scanning New York State Tax’s documentation will be performed by New York State Tax employees and/or its authorized subcontractors at New York State Tax’s facilities and will not be performed by bidder.  Furthermore, bidder cannot remotely access the scanner solution.  Additionally, the scanner solutions will be installed at New York State Tax’s facilities and will be under the exclusive management and control of New York State Tax.

Based on the above, bidder is respectfully requesting the removal of this paragraph under sub-Article B, Federal Secrecy Provisions.

E. Article VIII.  Reserved Rights (pg. 67)

Bidder is respectfully requesting the modification (as shown in bold text) of the second paragraph of Article VIII, Reserved Rights, from:

“The Department shall have the right to require the removal of any Contractor staff assigned to this project for work related cause upon written notification to the Contractor.  Such notification shall set forth the reasons for the request for removal.  In such event, Contractor shall promptly provide a substitution.”

To

“If any personnel of Contract are found to be unacceptable to the Department for any reason, in the Department’s sole and reasonable judgment, the Department shall notify Contractor and shall document the reasons for requesting the removal of such personnel of Contractor. Both Contractor and the Department shall in good faith, discuss the basis for the Department’s request to remove Contractor’s personnel and provide Contractor an opportunity to respond to the Department’s request.  If the Department, in good faith, still believes a reasonable basis exists after Contractor have been afforded an opportunity to inquire and respond to the request for removal, then Contractor shall promptly remove such employee, agent or subcontractor within ten (10) business days.  Furthermore, the Department shall provide Contractor a reasonable period of time of at least twenty-five (25) business days to find a permanent replacement, commencing from the date Contractor removes its employee, agent, or subcontractor from the Department’s facility.  During the interim period, Contractor shall continue to perform this project for work by temporarily assigning other personnel of Contractor to perform its obligations until a permanent replacement is assigned to the Department.”

F. Article IX.  Performance Standards and Remedies (pg. 67)

Pursuant to the terms set forth Article XII. Termination, bidder is respectfully requesting a cure period of at least thirty (30) calendar days from the date bidder receives written notification including a detailed description of bidder’s violations of any terms and conditions of the Agreement from New York State Tax.  If upon termination of the thirty (30) calendar day period and bidder has failed to correct the written deficiencies as provided by New York Stat Tax, then New York State Tax shall exercise its right to terminate the Agreement set forth under Article IX.

G. Article XI.  Continuing Administrative Requirements 

vi. Equal Employment/Business Participation Opportunities for Minority Group Members and New York Certified Minority/Women-Owned Businesses (pg. 69)

Can you please kindly advise if a bidder can obtain an exemption for this requirement?  The reason is due to the fact that bidder is a sole source manufacturer and service provider for its products.  We manufacture the products in our facilities located in Moorestown, NJ and all aspects of maintenance services are performed directly by bidder’s trained employees.  As such, we do not utilize third parties in the provision of maintenance services for its products.  

H. Article XII.  Termination

vii. Termination for Cause (pg. 70)

Bidder is respectfully requesting the modification (as shown in bold text) of the first paragraph of Article XII, Termination, from:

“If the Contractor fails to perform its obligations as set forth in Article VII (Secrecy), this Agreement may be cancelled immediately upon written notice.  At its sole discretion, the Department may elect not to allow a cure period for such failure.”

To

“If the Contractor fails to perform its obligations as set forth in Article VII (Secrecy), this Agreement may be cancelled immediately upon written notice subject to the Department allowing a cure period of at least thirty (30) calendar days from the date Contractor receives the written notification from the Department detailing the deficiencies to correct the deficiencies prior to cancelling this Agreement.”

viii. Termination for Cause (pg. 70)

Bidder is respectfully requesting the modification (as shown in bold text) of the second paragraph of Article XII, Termination, from:

“Otherwise, if the Contractor fails to perform its material obligations under this contract and does not within ten calendar days after receiving written notice from the Department describing the alleged material failure, either,

1. Cure the material breach; or

2. If the material failure is one that cannot be reasonably cured within 10 calendar days after receiving written notice from the Department, then the Department may either terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, and pursue available remedies, subject to the limitations contained in Article XIII (Indemnification and Limitation of Liability) or extend the cure period.”

   To

“Otherwise, if the Contractor fails to perform its material obligations under this contract and does not within thirty calendar days after receiving written notice from the Department describing the alleged material failure, either,

1. Cure the material breach; or

2. If the material failure is one that cannot be reasonably cured within 30 calendar days after receiving written notice from the Department, then the Department may either terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, and pursue available remedies, subject to the limitations contained in Article XIII (Indemnification and Limitation of Liability) or extend the cure period.”

ix. Termination for Convenience (pg. 71)

Bidder is respectfully requesting the modification (as shown in bold text) of the paragraph for Termination of Convenience under Article XII, Termination, from:

“The Department may terminate this contract in whole or in part at any time for convenience upon thirty calendar days’ written notice to the Contractor without penalty or other early termination charges due.”

To

“The Department may terminate this contract in whole or in part at any time for convenience upon sixty calendar days written notice to the Contractor without penalty or other early termination charges due.”

x. Procedure for Termination (pg.71)

Bidder is respectfully requesting the modification (as shown in bold text) of the paragraph for Procedure for Termination under Article XII, Termination, from:

“In the event of termination for cause or convenience, the parties agree to cooperate in a manner to effect an orderly termination of the Contract.  In the event of termination for any reason, the Department will be reimbursed for the portion of support and maintenance that was prepaid but unused.”

To

“In the event of termination for cause or convenience, the parties agree to cooperate in a manner to effect an orderly termination of the Contract.  In the event of termination for any reason, the Department will be credited for the portion of support and maintenance that was prepaid, to be calculated from the effective date of termination of this Agreement, in whole or in part.”

I. Article XIII.  Indemnification and Limitation of Liability 

i. B.  Intellectual Property Rights (pg. 71-72)

Bidder is respectfully requesting the modification (as shown in bold text) of the paragraph B under Article XIII, Indemnification and Limitation of Liability, from:

“(ii) opportunity to take over, settle or defend such action, claim or suit at the Contractor’s sole expense, and”

To

“(ii) opportunity to take over, settle or defend such action, claim or suit at the Department’s sole expense, and”

ii. B.  Intellectual Property Rights (pg. 71-72)

Bidder is respectfully requesting that paragraph B. Intellectual Property Rights under Article XIII, Indemnification and Limitation of Liability, shall be modified by the incorporation of the below requested language (as shown in bold text):

“In the defense or settlement of a claim pursuant to paragraph B. Intellectual Property Rights of Article XIII. Indemnification and Limitation of Liability above, Contractor may: (i) obtain for the Department the right to continue using the product; (ii) replace or modify the product so that it becomes non-infringing; or (iii) if remedies (i) and (ii) are not reasonably available, grant the Department a depreciated refund pro-rata based upon a sixty (60) month life, measured from the original installation date of the product.  

Contractor shall not have any liability if the alleged infringement is based upon the use or sale of the product in combination with other products or devices not furnished or approved by Contractor.  CONTRACTOR DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER LIABILITY FOR PATENT, COPYRIGHT OR TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT, INCLUDING ANY INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, AND THE RIGHTS STATED HEREIN ARE THE DEPARTMENT’S SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.”

iii. C.  Limitation of Liability (pg. 72)

Bidder is respectfully requesting the modification (as shown in bold text) of the first paragraph C. Limitation of Liability under Article XIII, Indemnification and Limitation of Liability, from:

“Except as resulting from Contractor’s indemnification obligations above or from Contractor’s breach of its confidentiality obligations under this Agreement, in no event shall Contractor or the Department be liable for any indirect, incidental, consequential, punitive or special damages of any kind.”

To

“Except as resulting from Contractor’s general indemnification obligations set forth under paragraph A to Article XIII.  Indemnification and Limitation of Liability above or from Contractor’s breach of its confidentiality obligations under this Agreement, in no event shall Contractor or the Department be liable for any indirect, incidental, consequential, punitive or special damages of any kind.”

iv. C.  Limitation of Liability (pg. 72)

Bidder is respectfully requesting the modification (as shown in bold text) of the third paragraph of sub-article C. Limitation of Liability under Article XIII, Indemnification and Limitation of Liability, from:

“Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Article, Contractor remains liable, without monetary limitation, for direct damages for personal injury, death, or damage to real property or tangible personal property or intellectual property attributable to the negligence or other tort of Contractor, its officers, employees or agents.”

To

“Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Article, Contractor remains liable, without monetary limitation, for direct damages for personal injury, death, or damage to real property or tangible personal property attributable to the negligence or other tort of Contractor, its officers, employees or agents.”

v. F.  Licensed Software and Licensed Documentation, sub-paragraph 1 (pg. 73)

Bidder is respectfully requesting the modification (as shown in bold text) of the first paragraph under sub-Article F. Limitation of Liability of Article XIII, Indemnification and Limitation of Liability, from:

“1)  Contractor grants the Department, at no charge, an irrevocable, nonexclusive license and right to use, copy, display and internally distribute at its own expense the Licensed Software provided by Contractor to perform the Services under the Contract.  Contractor shall employ, and shall provide the Department with the information to install and use, copy, display, and internally distribute the Licensed Software and Licensed Documentation provided by Contractor for performance of the Services under the Contract.”

To

“1)  Subject to the Department’s timely and full payment of the annual software license fees as provided under the Proposal set forth under Appendix 1 of this Agreement, Contractor grants the Department, a personal, non-transferable, nonexclusive license and right to use, the Licensed Software only in connection with the product.  The Department shall not copy, modify, adapt, translate, reverse-engineer, decompile, disassemble or create derivate software based on the Licensed Software.”

vi. F.  Licensed Software and Licensed Documentation, sub-paragraph 1 (pg. 73)

Bidder is respectfully requesting the modification (as shown in bold text) of the second paragraph under sub-Article F. Licensed Software and Licensed Documentation of Article XIII, Indemnification and Limitation of Liability, from:

“2)  Contractor shall , at no additional cost to the Department, be responsible for maintaining the Licensed Software used in providing the Services hereunder, throughout the term of this Agreement, and for any additional period of time during which Contractor continues to perform services for the Department.”

To

“2) Subject to the Department’s timely and full payment of the on-call maintenance service fees set forth in Contractor’s Proposal to the RFP as set forth under Appendix 1 of this Agreement, Contractor shall  be responsible for maintaining the Licensed Software in connection with the product, throughout the term of this Agreement, and for any additional period of time as mutually agreed upon by both parties and at an additional cost, during which Contractor continues to perform services for the Department.”

vii. F.  Licensed Software and Licensed Documentation, sub-paragraph 1 (pg. 73)

Bidder is respectfully requesting the deletion of the third paragraph under sub-Article F. Licensed Software and Licensed Documentation of Article XIII, Indemnification and Limitation of Liability:

“3)  Contractor agrees to provide the Department with prompt access to all Licensed Software used to perform the Services hereunder, and related Licensed Documentation to the extent of Contractor’s intellectual property rights in such software and documentation, upon reasonable notice by the Department, throughout the term of this Agreement.”

The purpose for the deletion of this third paragraph is because the payment of the annual on-call maintenance fees for the scanner solution includes the performance maintenance services for the product including the hardware and software that are installed on the product.  As such, New York Department of Tax will not need to provide maintenance services for the software that are already installed on the scanner solution.  

J. Article XIV.  General Terms and Conditions

i. Assignment of Rights and Duties (pg. 75)

Bidder is respectfully requesting the modification (as shown in bold text) of the third paragraph under sub-Article titled “Assignment of Rights and Duties” of Article XIV, General Terms and Conditions, from:

“The terms and conditions of this Agreement may be extended to any other New York State agency through the use of a formally executed agreement between the Contractor and the state agency subject to review and approval of the Office of the Attorney General, and the Office of the State Comptroller.”

To:

“Subject to Contract’s agreement, which shall not be unreasonably withheld and during the term of this Agreement, the terms and conditions of this Agreement may be extended to any other New York State agency through the use of a formally executed agreement between the Contractor and the state agency subject to review and approval of the Office of the Attorney General, and the Office of the State Comptroller. If the extension of the Agreement to any other New York State agency is for product(s) and services other than those set forth in the Proposal, then Contractor shall provide the applicable purchase and services costs to the requested New York State agency, in accordance to Contractor’s then current published rates.”

K. Appendix A – Standard Clauses for New York State Contracts

i. Paragraph 22 - Compliance With New York State Information Security Breach And Notification Act (pg. 85)

Please kindly refer to bidder’s question under Question 21(D) above.
	The Department will negotiate the terms and conditions of the contract with the winning Bidder.  Please note, however, extraneous terms must be submitted with the Bidders Administrative Proposal and cannot conflict with the Mandatory Requirements of Section II. Qualifying Requirements and Section III. Functional Requirements.

.
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	Attachment 14 – Financial Response Form


	
	Can a bidder provide 2 separate purchase prices for the same product? Specifically, can a bidder provide one purchase price to be firm from April 15, 2011 through December 31, 2011? And another purchase price, for the same product, to be held firm from January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012.  

Additionally, will the purchase price be subject to the price cap as set forth under Section IV, Financial Requirements, page 30 of the RFP during the five year term of the Agreement?  

If yes, can a bidder offer a revised price cap?  Please refer to bidder’s questions under Question _16 above regarding Section IV, Financial Requirements, page 30 of the RFP.
	No.


Preface
A. Proposal Questions/Inquiries
Prospective Bidders will have one opportunity to submit written questions and requests for clarification regarding this Request for Proposal (RFP).  All questions regarding this RFP must be submitted via e-mail (preferred), fax or mail and be received by the date and time specified in the Schedule of Events.  Questions must reference the relevant page and section of the RFP and must be directed to one of the designated contacts identified below:

E-mail:


bfs_contracts@tax.state.ny.us
Fax:


(518) 435-8413

Written Correspondence:




New York State Department of Taxation and Finance




Attn:  Catherine Golden, Assistant Director




Procurement Services Unit




WA Harriman State Campus




Albany, NY 12227

Prospective Bidders should note that all clarifications and exceptions, including those relating to the terms and conditions of the RFP, are to be resolved prior to the submission of a bid.  Bidders may propose extraneous terms to Section V and the Preliminary Contract with their Administrative Proposal.   Acceptance and/or processing of the bid proposal shall not constitute such written acceptance of the extraneous terms.  Failure to object to any terms identified in Section V of this RFP and the Preliminary Contract, Exhibit B, shall be deemed to constitute acceptance thereof by the Bidder. Bidders entering into a contract with the State are expected to comply with all the terms and conditions contained herein.
All inquiries concerning this solicitation must be addressed to one of the following designated contacts:

Catherine Golden
(518) 457-0954

bfs_contracts@tax.state.ny.us
Karen Brino

(518) 485-6091

bfs_contracts@tax.state.ny.us
Contacting individuals other than the designated contacts listed above may result in the disqualification of the Bidder’s proposal – please refer to the Procurement Lobbying Law and the Department of Taxation and Finance (DTF or Department) guidelines posted on the Department’s procurement website at: http://www.tax.ny.gov/about/procure, and additional requirements in Section V, Administrative Requirements.

Attachment I – Relocation of Equipment Response Form

This form is for the Moving of Equipment as specified in Section III. F.

Once this solution is installed, it may need to be relocated to accommodate spacing or expansion at the DTF site.  The Bidder must indicate if the relocation of the installed solution must be performed by the Bidder to maintain the warranty and maintenance terms and conditions.

 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Scanning Solution must be moved by the Bidder to maintain the Warranty and maintenance terms and conditions.

 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Scanning Solution does not need to be moved by the Bidder to maintain the warranty and maintenance terms and conditions.


If the Bidder does not require the equipment to be relocated by them, does the Bidder require an inspection after the equipment is moved to ensure the scanning solution is performing in accordance with the specifications.





 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Yes


 FORMCHECKBOX 
  No

Bidder Name:  _______________________________________________

Title:  ______________________________________________________

Signature:  __________________________________________________

